Minutes of the meeting of the Curriculum Committee 16 April 2010 (recorded by Brad Dillman)

In attendance: Derek Buescher (chair), Alyce DeMarais, Brad Dillman, Greg Elliott, Kena Fox–Dobbs, Leon Grunberg, Kent Hooper, Alisa Kessel, Brad Reich, Rob Schaller, Brad Tomhave, Kurt Walls, Barbara Warren, Steven Zopfi; Lori Ricigliano,

Meeting called to order at 9 am

Minutes from April 2 approved: M/S/P

Working group reports:

WG 1: Motion to accept the Foreign Languages and Literature Curriculum Review (Appendix I). DeMarais noted that in discussions with French Studies faculty, it was agreed French Studies will offer two majors, with the French Language and Literature major offering 4 different tracks. Buescher asked if COMM courses are to be listed in the language track major. Kessel noted that current FLIA requirements for international politics classes have many students needing IR courses in P&G. The committee recommends that the FLL faculty confirm the appropriateness of non-departmental courses for the majors. Acceptance of Foreign Language and Literature Curriculum review: M/S/P.

WG 2: Expects to present report on Freshman Seminars review at next meeting.

WG 4: Motion to accept the Gender Studies Curriculum Review (Appendix II): M/S/P, Buescher abstention. Motion to accept School of Business and Leadership (SBL) Curriculum Review (Appendix III). Reich explained rationale for not changing BUS 475 to a 300-level course—there is a substantial research component in the course that fits with the SBL course numbering scheme; the working group will consider this new information. Hooper noted that few core courses are offered by BLP. Reich explained that several core courses are offered, but that the department has focused on serving majors. In response to questions, DeMarais noted that BLP offers an advising section for a first-year students and there is one first-year seminar offered. Motion by Warren to table the review discussion until the following week: M/S/P, Reich abstention.

WG 5: Noted that the Fine Arts rubric discussion will probably not be done this school year. WG has received Asian Studies material. STS review may have to wait until next year.

DeMarais moved to approve changes to the Curriculum Statement made in spring 2009 relating to the rubric for freshman seminars including mention of academic integrity (Appendix IV). M/S/P.

Discussion of independent study was tabled.

Discussion of activity credits. Tomhave outlined some relevant issues, including the perceived "unnaturalness" of 1.5 activity credits when the college moved to 32 units required for graduation; the actual reduction was to 1.75 units that was then "rounded" to 1.5 units. He noted that some students were using activity credits, including via independent studies or Writing Center offerings, to reach 32 units needed to graduate. He raised several questions, including whether they should count toward graduation credit. He noted most are taken pass/fail. Warren asked what would happen if no activity credits could count toward graduation. Tomhave said that would probably not affect enrollment in activity credit classes. Elliott noted it would put pressure on other academic courses. It was noted that approximately 1200 students are taking an activity credit right now. Kessel asked if distinctions could be made different kinds of activity credits. DeMarais said it would be hard to make distinctions. Hooper argued for treating all activity credits the same and allowing a student to take up to 2 units of them. Grunberg asked what the down side would be to allowing students to take 2 units. Tomhave responded that this could reduce the total number of academic credits required from 30.5 to 30. Elliott moved that we propose to faculty to change the maximum activity credits to 2. M/S/P

Appendix I

Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Foreign Languages and Literature Curriculum Review April 2010

Curriculum Committee Working Group 1 moves to accept the Department of Foreign Languages and Literature's 2010 Curricular Review.

The department members prepared a thorough and thoughtful review that addresses the introduction and reorganization of three different major tracks within the department: French Studies, German Studies, and Hispanic Studies. The department provides good rationale for the divergence of the majors in these three areas but recognizes the practicality and necessity of retaining the Foreign Languages and Literature department status where the faculty work together to support non-Asian foreign language-related instruction and scholarship at the University of Puget Sound.

The Working Group, in consultation with the department, notes the following regarding the curriculum review:

- The department agrees to have two majors in French Studies (rather than five separate majors):
 - o French Language and Culture with four tracks:
 - French Literary Studies
 - French Cultural Studies
 - French and the Arts
 - French and Comparative Literature
 - o French Language and International Affairs (FLIA)
- All majors, tracks, and courses, within all three areas of French Studies, German Studies, and Hispanic Studies, must be offered within the existing faculty

- complement of the department. Acceptance of modifications of the curriculum neither presumes nor endorses the need for additional staffing to fulfill the proposed curriculum.
- The use of extended papers/projects for seniors in their upper-division classes is a creative, thoughtful mechanism that will provide an important culminating experience for students and valuable assessment of student learning outcomes for the department. We urge the department to develop rubrics that address the student learning outcomes for assessment of the senior papers/projects.
- The department proposes piloting a program of using the Diploma de español como lengua extranjera (DELE) proficiency exam as an assessment of learning outcomes for students majoring in Hispanic Studies. If the DELE is indeed being used as an assessment of student learning within the Hispanic Studies program at Puget Sound, then teaching preparatory classes for the exam is neither necessary nor desired. We urge the department to evaluate their motivation for the use of the DELE and plan accordingly.
- The working group acknowledges the faculty's thoughtful analysis of the current and future state of the Spanish language, and those who speak it, in the US. The working group also notes the work of the department faculty in a number of initiatives to promote language and culture studies. While the working group applauds these efforts, it notes that they are not expectations of the university curriculum.
- The committee recommends the department consult with other departments and programs regarding the suitability and offering of courses required for majors under the auspices of the FLL department.

Appendix II

Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Gender Studies Program Review April 2010

Curriculum Committee Working Group 4 moves to accept the Gender Studies Program's 2010 Curricular Review.

The Working Group notes the following regarding the curriculum review:

The Gender Studies Program is an important part of the University's curriculum. The program has responded dynamically to changes in the study of gender and in the University curriculum.

We believe that the Gender Studies program has identified excellent learning outcomes for the program (p. 4) and that the seminar project and presentation would be great opportunities to assess how minors meet these outcomes. Still missing is an articulation of how students' final projects are assessed in the context of the stated outcomes. One

option would be for GS faculty to discuss the projects after the presentations and generate a formal record of that discussion. Such a record could be used as a valuable tool for assessment.

We recommend that the program generate an additional appendix that disaggregates Gender Studies enrollments from total enrollments for each course. We believe that this would lend greater clarity to the report and would also substantiate the report's claim that the study of gender is significant to students across the curriculum. There are a significant number of GS minors, but there are also many other students across campus serviced by GS courses.

We also recommend that the program consider developing strategies for filling in some of the curricular gaps in the program (such as courses on sexuality or courses offered in politics, science, or business).

Appendix III

Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Business and Leadership Curriculum Review April 2010

Curriculum Committee Working Group 4 moves to accept the School of Business and Leadership's 2010 Curricular Review.

The Working Group notes the following regarding the curriculum review:

- The department has eliminated the Category B requirement for two units of coursework outside School of Business and Leadership (SBL) noting that integration of the business major within the liberal arts has been subsumed by the graduation requirement of three upper division courses outside the major. In conjunction with the department, we have modified the major requirements to read "Advanced *business* electives" which will ensure that only business courses will be used within the major preserving the use of the "upper division outside the major" requirement as proposed.
- We encourage the SBL faculty to frame the program goals in the form of student learning outcomes. We acknowledge that the program will do so with its 2010-2011 Bulletin text edits.
- We encourage the SBL faculty to continue to develop ways to be involved in university core courses and non-departmental courses. While there is ample opportunity for students from outside the SBL program to take BUS courses, the converse is not as prevalent.
- We encourage the SBL faculty to continue to develop mechanisms for enhancing student writing and information literacy through assignment structuring and collaboration with library and Center for Writing, Learning, and Teaching staff. We note the reorganization of the senior experience from BUS 490 to a senior research seminar and the opportunity this provides for both an in-depth culminating experience for students, the further integration of information literacy and writing work into the senior curriculum, and the assessment of student learning outcomes.

• Business 475 (Law, Lawyers, and Legal Education) would be more appropriately designated as a 300-level course. The course, which services juniors and seniors who anticipate attending law school, is described as a law school (and legal career) preparatory course that helps students develop skills they will need to pursue legal education. Other 300-level courses also emphasize skill-building, whereas 400-level courses designate advanced topics or research-oriented courses. We believe that BUS 475 seems more closely related to 300-level courses within the program.

Appendix IV

CURRICULUM STATEMENT May 7, 2001 Revised Fall 2003; Spring 2009

I. General Considerations

The University of Puget Sound as an academic community provides a meeting place for those committed to the generation, study, analysis, and exchange of ideas. The intellectual purposes of the University are of paramount importance. At the same time, the University recognizes that the life of the mind creates a context for the personal and professional growth of individuals as whole persons. The University thus encourages both formal thought and self-reflection and offers a curriculum supporting the exploration of diverse ideas, values, and cultures.

An undergraduate liberal arts education should provide the foundation for a lifetime of intellectual inquiry by grounding undergraduates well in a field of specialization, developing their ability to write with clarity and power, deepening their understanding of the structures and issues of the contemporary world, and broadening their perspective on enduring human concerns and cultural change. Such an education should prepare a person to pursue interests and ideas with confidence and independence, to meet the demands of a career, and to cope with the complexity of modern life.

The curricular requirements set forth in this document represent the minimum demands of a liberal education. Academic advisors should urge each student to explore varying fields of study in the process of constructing a broad educational program on the foundation of the required curriculum.

II. Educational Goals for the University

The undergraduate curriculum will emphasize the following educational goals:

- A. The ability to think logically and analytically;
- B. The ability to communicate clearly and effectively, both orally and in writing;
- C. Intellectual autonomy and the accompanying capacity to learn independently of a formal educational structure;
- D. An understanding of the interrelationship of knowledge;
- E. Familiarity with diverse fields of knowledge;
- F. Solid grounding in the special field of the student's choosing;
- G. An acknowledged set of personal values;
- H. Informed appreciation of self and others as part of a broader humanity in the world environment.

III. Graduation Requirements

In order to receive the baccalaureate degree from the University of Puget Sound, a student must have

- A. Completed a minimum of 32 units. The 32 units may include up to 1.5 units of activity courses, up to 4 units of independent study, and up to four academic courses graded on the pass/fail system;
- B Earned a minimum of 16 units, including the last 8, in residence at the University; residence requirements also exist in Core, majors, minors, and graduation honors.
- C. Maintained a minimum grade-point average (GPA) of 2.0 for all courses taken at Puget Sound;
- D. Maintained a minimum GPA of 2.0 for all graded and all Puget Sound courses in the major(s) and the minor(s), if a minor is elected;
- E. Maintained a minimum GPA of 2.0 for all graded courses, including transfer courses;
- F. Met University core requirements; (Courses taken pass fail will not fulfill University core requirements.)
- G. Satisfied the Foreign Language Graduation Requirement by at least one of the following:
 - 1. Successfully completing two semesters of a foreign language at the 101-102 college level, or one semester of a foreign language at the 200 level or above;
 - 2. Passing a University of Puget Sound approved foreign language proficiency exam at the third-year high school or first-year college level:
 - 3. Receiving a score of 4 or 5 on an Advanced Placement foreign language exam, or a score of 5, 6, or 7 on the International Baccalaureate Higher Level foreign language exam.
- H. Earned at least three academic units outside the first major at the upper division level, which is understood to be 300 or 400 level courses or 200 level courses with at least two prerequisites;
- I. Met requirements in an academic major; (Courses counting toward the major may not be taken pass/fail unless they are mandatory pass/fail courses.)
- J. Completed all incomplete or in-progress grades;
- K. Filed an application for graduation with the Office of the Registrar. Applications are due in September for graduation in the following May, August, or December.

IV. Core Requirements for the Bachelor's Degree

The faculty of the University of Puget Sound have designed the core curriculum to give undergraduates an integrated and demanding introduction to the life of the mind and to established methods of intellectual inquiry. The Puget Sound undergraduate's core experience begins with two first-year seminars that guide the student through an in-depth exploration of a focused area of interest and that sharpen the student's skills in constructing persuasive arguments. In the first three years of their Puget Sound college career, students also study five "Approaches to Knowing" - Fine Arts, Humanities, Mathematics, Natural Science, and Social Science. These core areas develop the student's understanding of different disciplinary perspectives on society, culture, and the

physical world, and explore both the strengths of those disciplinary approaches and their limitations. Connections, an upper-level integrative course, challenges the traditional boundaries of disciplines and examines the benefits and limits of interdisciplinary approaches to knowledge.

Further, in accordance with the stated educational goals of the University of Puget Sound, core curriculum requirements have been established: (a) to improve each student's grasp of the intellectual tools necessary for the understanding and communication of ideas; (b) to enable each student to understand herself or himself as a thinking person capable of making ethical and aesthetic choices; (c) to help each student comprehend the diversity of intellectual approaches to understanding human society and the physical world; and (d) to increase each student's awareness of his or her place in those broader contexts. Specific objectives of the core areas are described below.

A. Core Curriculum: Rubrics and Guidelines.

Each core rubric consists of two sections, "Guidelines" and "Learning Objectives." Faculty have developed the Guidelines section to achieve the particular Learning Objectives of the core rubric and, more broadly, the educational goals of the University. The Guidelines are intended to be used by faculty to develop core courses and by the Curriculum Committee to review core courses. The Learning Objectives are intended to provide a clear statement to students of what they can expect to learn from any given core area. Although the Learning Objectives will assist the faculty in developing Core courses and in meeting the spirit of the Core area, the Curriculum Committee will evaluate and approve Core courses based on their adherence to the Guidelines, not the Learning Objectives.

SEMINAR IN WRITING AND RHETORIC RUBRIC

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

In each Seminar in Writing and Rhetoric, students encounter the two central aspects of the humanistic tradition of rhetorical education: argumentation and effective oral and written expression. Students in these seminars develop the intellectual habits and language capabilities to construct persuasive arguments and to write and speak effectively, and with integrity, for academic and civic purposes.

GUIDELINES

- I. Through their introduction to argumentation, these seminars address:
 - A. the value of pro/con reasoning and the need to approach a controversy from multiple perspectives;
 - B. issues and questions that organize a particular controversy;

- C. standard argument forms and other persuasive strategies (for example, traditional and contemporary models of reasoning, narrative); and
 D. methods of evaluating arguments (including evidence evaluation and identification of logical fallacies).
- II. Through their introduction to effective expression, these seminars address:
 - A. important elements and conventions of standard written English;
 - B. the range of lexical and stylistic resources available to speakers and writers (for example, appropriateness, audience, tone, voice, and other aspects of a message's verbal texture); and
 - C. various oral and written composition strategies, including approaching composition as a process (including purposeful drafting, revising, and editing).
- III. These seminars address respect for the intellectual work and ideas of others by acknowledging the use of information sources in communicating one's own work. Methods for addressing academic integrity are built in to seminar assignments.
- IV. These seminars may be organized around topics, themes, or texts; in each seminar the material must be appropriate and accessible for meaningful work by first-year students.

SCHOLARLY AND CREATIVE INQUIRY SEMINAR RUBRIC

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

The purpose of this core area is to introduce students to the processes of scholarly and creative inquiry through direct participation in that inquiry. Students in a Scholarly and Creative Inquiry Seminar gain a degree of mastery that comes with deep exposure to a focused seminar topic. They increase their ability to frame and explore questions, to support claims, and to respond to others' questions and differing opinions. Finally, students develop and demonstrate their intellectual independence by engaging in substantive written work on the topic in papers or projects, employing good practices of academic integrity.

GUIDELINES

- I. Scholarly and Creative Inquiry seminars examine a focused scholarly topic, set of questions, or theme.
- II. Since seminars in this category are taken in the student's freshman year, they are designed to be accessible and appropriate for the accomplishment of meaningful work by students without previous preparation in the course's field. This requirement informs the choice of topic or theme of the course, the choice of texts or materials to be treated in the course, and the design of assignments for the course.

- III. Seminars in Scholarly and Creative Inquiry require substantive written work on the topic in papers or projects and include significant intellectual exchange both between the instructor and the students and among the students. Careful, sustained, and recurrent examination of ideas and sources (broadly defined to include data, texts, media, and/or other visual, aural, or graphic material) play a central role in the course. Pedagogical methods take advantage of the opportunities provided by a seminar setting.
- IV. Seminars in Scholarly and Creative Inquiry address respect for the intellectual work and ideas of others by acknowledging the use of information sources in communicating one's own work. Methods for addressing academic integrity are built in to seminar assignments.

FINE ARTS APPROACHES RUBRIC

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

Students in Fine Arts Approaches courses acquire an understanding and appreciation of an artistic tradition and develop their skills in the critical analysis of art.

GUIDELINES

- I. The Fine Arts include the visual, performing, and literary arts. Courses in Fine Arts Approaches may either be in the history of art or in artistic creation.
- II. Courses in Fine Arts Approaches examine significant developments and representative works of an artistic tradition.
- III. These courses introduce students to methods of aesthetic and formal analysis and require students to reflect critically, both orally and in writing, about art and the creative process.

HUMANISTIC APPROACHES RUBRIC

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

Students in courses in Humanistic Approaches acquire an understanding of how humans have addressed fundamental questions of existence, identity, and values and develop an appreciation of these issues of intellectual and cultural experience. Students also learn to explicate and to evaluate critically products of human reflection and creativity.

GUIDELINES

I. Humanistic Approaches courses examine products of individual or collective human reflection and creativity. Accordingly, courses may include literary or

- artistic works or other evidence of the beliefs, customs, and institutions of a culture or cultures.
- II. Courses in Humanistic Approaches introduce students to methodologies appropriate to the exploration of beliefs about human existence, identity, and values.
- III. Humanistic Approaches courses explore these issues over time or across cultures.

MATHEMATICAL APPROACHES RUBRIC

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

Students in Mathematical Approaches courses develop an appreciation of the power of Mathematics and formal methods to provide a way of understanding a problem unambiguously, describing its relation to other problems, and specifying clearly an approach to its solution. Students in Mathematical Approaches courses develop a variety of mathematical skills, an understanding of formal reasoning, and a facility with applications.

GUIDELINES

- I. These goals are met by courses that treat formal reasoning in one of the following areas.
 - A. Quantitative reasoning: The ability to work with numeric data, to reason from those data, and to understand what can and can not be inferred from those data;
 - B. Logical reasoning: The study of formal logic, at least to the extent that is required to understand mathematical proof.
 - C. The algorithmic method: The ability to analyze a problem, to design a systematic way of addressing that problem (an algorithm), and to implement that algorithm in a computer programming language.
- II. Where these skills or methods are taught within the context of a discipline other than mathematics or computer science, they must receive greater attention than the disciplinary material.

NATURAL SCIENTIFIC APPROACHES RUBRIC

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

Students in Natural Scientific Approaches courses develop an understanding of scientific methods. They also acquire knowledge of the fundamental elements of one or more natural sciences.

GUIDELINES

- I. Courses in Natural Scientific Approaches are founded in and explore the fundamental elements of one or more of the disciplines of astronomy, biology, chemistry, geology, and physics.
- II. Courses in Natural Scientific Approaches emphasize scientific methods in problem solving. They develop the student's analytical abilities and, whenever possible, incorporate quantitative methods.
- III. Courses in Natural Scientific Approaches have regularly scheduled laboratory or field experiences involving data collection and analysis.

SOCIAL SCIENTIFIC APPROACHES RUBRIC

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

The social sciences provide systematic approaches to understanding relationships that arise among individuals, organizations, or institutions. Students in a course in the Social Scientific Approach to Knowing acquire an understanding of theories about individual or collective behavior within a social environment and of the ways that empirical evidence is used to develop and test those theories.

GUIDELINES

- I. Courses in Social Scientific Approaches
 - A. explore assumptions embedded in social scientific theories and
 - B. examine the importance of simplifying or describing observations of the world in order to construct a model of individual or collective behavior.
- II. Courses in Social Scientific Approaches require students to apply a social scientific theory as a way of understanding individual or collective behavior.

CONNECTIONS RUBRIC

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

Students in Connections courses develop their understanding of the interrelationship of fields of knowledge by exploring connections and contrasts between various disciplines with respect to disciplinary methodology and subject matter.

GUIDELINES

I. Connections courses draw upon the curricula of either established disciplines or the University's interdisciplinary programs. These courses may involve the collaboration of faculty from more than one department or the efforts of individual faculty with interdisciplinary expertise and interests.

- II. In the Connections course, students engage the interdisciplinary process by
 - A. identifying multiple disciplinary approaches to a subject;
 - B. analyzing the subject from these perspectives;
 - C. participating in cross-disciplinary dialogue; and
 - D. exploring the integration or synthesis of these approaches to foster understanding of the subject.
- III. Connections courses explore these interdisciplinary issues at a level of sophistication expected of an upper division course. These courses may have appropriate prerequisites, so long as they do not unduly limit the audience in numbers or in level of disciplinary sophistication.
- IV. The Connections course must be taken at Puget Sound.

B. Sequence of Core Courses.

Students are expected to satisfy the eight core requirements in the following sequence:

Units	
The First Year: Argument and Inquiry	
Writing and Rhetoric Seminar	1
Scholarly and Creative Inquiry Seminar	1
Years 1 through 3: Five Approaches to Knowing	
Fine Arts	
Humanistic 1	
Mathematical (strongly recommended in the first year)	1
Natural Scientific 1	
Social Scientific	1
Junior or Senior Year: Interdisciplinary Experience	
Connections 1	
8	

C. Core requirements for transfer students.

- 1. All transfer students, prior to receiving the bachelor's degree, must meet all core requirements.
- 2. Students entering the University with advanced standing must complete the following minimum core requirements at the University of Puget Sound.
 - a. Students entering with sophomore standing must complete a course in Connections and three additional core areas.
 - b. Students entering with junior standing or above must complete a course in Connections and two additional core areas.

D. Enrollment limits for core courses.

Faculty and administration recognize the value of small classes for teaching and learning and will work together to reduce the size of core classes whenever possible. Sections of the Writing and Rhetoric Seminar and of the Scholarly and Creative Inquiry Seminar will have enrollment limits of 17 students.

V. Departmental, School, and Program Guidelines

- A. Each program, department and school within the University will review its academic program regularly to ensure that the basic educational objectives of the University are being addressed. This re-examination should not be cursory, nor designed merely to affirm the status quo. Courses should be revised, if necessary, to address University and departmental objectives.
- B. Each program, department and school will maintain at least one course suitable for, but not restricted to, the non-major, for whom that course may comprise the sole exposure to the field. The course should consider methodology and assumptions as well as substantive disciplinary knowledge.
- C. Each student should become familiar with values, assumptions, and perspectives conditioned by cultures different from her or his own.

 Wherever it is appropriate and possible to do so, courses should consider the subject matter in a multicultural context.
- D. Since the University supports and encourages writing in all disciplines, students need to have opportunities for significant writing experiences whenever appropriate across the curriculum.
- E. Writing in the Major. Because the Writing and Rhetoric Seminar anticipates a further development of writing abilities throughout the undergraduate years, it is appropriate that all students should encounter substantive writing experiences within their major fields of study. Each department, school, or program with an undergraduate major shall demonstrate to the Curriculum Committee that the major contains significant writing expectations within its curricular requirements. (Please see Addendum A of the Departmental Curriculum Review Self-Study Guide for guidelines.)
- F. To encourage study outside the major field, the following limitations will govern the requirements imposed by each program, department or school:
 - 1. No more than 9 units may be required in the major field.
 - 2. No more than 16 total units may be required in the major and supporting fields.
 - 3. Exceptions will be permissible only with the approval of the Dean and the Curriculum Committee.
- G. An academic minor must consist of a minimum of five, but no more than six, units within the minor area.
- H. All courses and requirements shall be reviewed and approved by the Curriculum Committee.